4-04a7

Official 20-17

# THIS BOOK DOES NOT CIRCULATE

## AGREEMENT

## Between The

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SPRINGFIELD IN THE COUNTY OF UNION

And

SPRINGFIELD TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

1975-1976 1976**-**1977

LIBRARY Institute of Management and Labor Relations

6-4 23 1978

RUTGERS UNIVERSITY

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
AGREEMENT	1
RECOGNITION	2
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	3
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	14
SABBATICAL LEAVE	6
TEACHER-ADMINISTRATION-BOARD COMMITTEE	8
ABSENTEE POLICY	10
PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES	13
NON-TEACHING DUTIES	14
TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS	15
PROMOTIONS	16
FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE	17
TEACHER EVALUATION	19
PERSONNEL AND PERSONNEL RECORDS	20
TEACHERS' SALARY GUIDE	21
AFTER-SCHOOL ATHLETIC ACTIVITIES	22
OVERNIGHT FIELD TRIPS, INSURANCE, SUMMER SCHOOL	23
NON-CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL	24
ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES	25
SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT, DURATION	26
EXECUTION	27

# AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this 17th day of not. Nineteer

Hundred and Seventy-five

BY AND BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SPRINGFIELD, IN THE COUNTY OF UNION,

hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board"

AND

SPRINGFIELD TEACHERS ASSOCIATION,

hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Association"

The provisions of this Agreement will constitute a binding obligation of the parties for the duration hereof. Any previously adopted policy, rule or regulation of the parties which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement shall be superseded and replaced by this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement which changes pre-existing policy, rules or regulations of the parties will operate retroactively unless so stated.

The Board of Education agrees not to discriminate against any teacher because of his membership in the Association and its affiliates or because of his participation in collective negotiations with the Board of Education or his institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement, or in the formulation or the enforcement of Board policies.

## RECOGNITION

In accordance with the provisions of the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, the Board of Education recognizes the Springfield Teachers Association for the purpose of professional negotiations as the exclusive representative for the following who are under contract with the Board:

- 1. All certificated teaching personnel dealing directly with children
- 2. All certificated personnel in the Division of Special Services
- 3. Guidance counselors, Science-Math Specialist, Librarians

Only persons represented by the Springfield Teachers Association shall have the contract rights hereinafter defined, and it is further understood that the following certificated personnel are specifically excluded from this recognition:

- 1. Superintendent
- 2. Assistant Superintendent
- 3. Director of Special Services
- 4. Principals
- 5. Assistant Principals

The within recognition shall not impair the rights of any employee or group of employees under Section 19 of Article I of the New Jersey Constitution.

#### PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The program for special grants is a plan designed to help maintain instructional service at the highest level of quality and efficiency for certificated personnel. It is understood that satisfactory service is a prerequisite.

Such personnel are eligible to receive this grant when they attain tenure. Teachers may apply for grants the year before attaining tenure. The grant will then be available when tenure is attained. Applicants may apply each year to the Superintendent of Schools for a non-cumulative grant of a maximum of \$450 without regard to the number of credits said applicant may take per calendar year. The calendar year is defined in the same manner as the school budget year of July 1 through June 30. The tuition costs are those incurred outside school hours in connection with courses of study directly related to his or her work in the Springfield Schools. These grants shall be awarded according to the following principles:

- 1. The applicant must submit through the Principal to the Superintendent of Schools a brief outline of the purpose for which the grant is to be expended. If the proposed program is approved by the Superintendent, it is then brought to the attention of the Board of Education for consideration. The applicant will be notified of the Board's decision as soon as is practical, but in any case no later than May 1.
- 2. Applications must be submitted not later than March 15 of the fiscal year preceding the one in which the grant is to be expended.
- 3. After the completion of the program the recipient shall submit a report to his or her Principal and the Superintendent on the benefits gained from its use.
- 4. It is expected that those expending such grants shall not do so unless they plan to spend another year in the employ of the Springfield School District.
- 5. Grants will not be made to an applicant who has resigned or is planning to retire.
- 6. Requests for payment of grants shall be submitted on the official form, accompanied by a regular voucher.
- 7. Tuition fees received through Federal grants, etc., may not be duplicated by utilization of this policy. Tuition grants, subject to the above conditions, may even be awarded during sabbatical leave.

#### GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. It is agreed that an Advisory Arbitration Procedure shall become effective.

In connection with this procedure, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. Non-Tenure employees shall not be permitted to grieve their non re-employment.
- 2. A grievance concerning the interpretation or application of the terms and procedures of this Agreement is subject to Advisory Arbitration.
- 3. A grievance involving administrative decisions is subject to final decision by the Board.
- 4. A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated by the employee within thirty (30) days of its known occurrence. Failure to do so shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance.

## B. PROCEDURE

- 1. The employee shall first discuss his grievance orally with his immediate supervisor either directly or through the Association's designated representative with the objective of resolving the matter informally.
- 2. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached at the informal level hereinabove set forth, or if no decision has been rendered within 5 school days after presentation of the grievance, the employee or his representative may present the grievance in writing within 5 school days after the determination made in Paragraph 1, to the Superintendent of Schools. The written grievance shall set forth:
  - (a) The nature of the grievance and the remedy requested.
  - (b) The nature and extent of injury or loss.
  - (c) The basis of dissatisfaction with the prior determination.
- 3. A written decision shall be rendered within 10 school days after receipt of the written grievance.
- 4. If the grievance is not satisfactorily disposed of in the prior step or if no decision has been rendered within the time limit set forth, then the grievance may be referred by the individual or the Association to the Board of Education within 10 days of the completion of the proceedings in the preceding paragraph. The submission to the Board shall be in writing and shall include copies of all relevant documents previously considered in the grievance procedure together with a statement explaining the dissatisfaction with those decisions previously rendered. The Board shall, in writing, within 30 days, advise the Association and the employee of

its determination and shall forward a copy thereof to the immediate superior of the aggrieved employee.

- 5. In the event the disposition made in the preceding step is deemed unsatisfactory and in the event the grievance does not involve an administrative decision which is excluded from the terms of advisory arbitration as hereinabove set forth, then, and in that event, either party may request the American Arbitration Association to process the grievance in accordance with its rules and regulations for the selection of an arbitrator. Such request must be made within 15 calendar days of the date of receipt of the Board's decision.
- 6. The arbitrator shall limit his determination to the issue submitted to him and shall rule on nothing else. His determination, advisory in nature, shall be limited strictly to the application or interpretation of the provisions of this written agreement and he shall be without power or authority to make any determination contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator may not alter, add to or omit from the provisions of this Agreement.
- 7. The Board, the aggrieved, and the Association shall be supplied with copies of the arbitrator's determination.
- 8. Each party will assume the total cost incurred by itself. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator are the only costs which shall be shared equally.

#### SABBATICAL LEAVE

The policy of sabbatical leave is a plan designed to help maintain and improve the quality and efficiency of instructional service to the children of the Springfield Public Schools. This privilege is granted to certificated employees in order that they may extend their professional competence and thus better serve the school district.

Since the policy for sabbatical leave is solely to promote the more efficient conduct of the schools, no application for such leave shall be recommended by the Superintendent or approved by the Board of Education unless after considered judgment the professional competence of the staff member and the general efficiency of the school system will thereby be benefited.

- 1. Any employee who has completed seven (7) or more years of continuous satisfactory service in the Springfield Public Schools may, on the recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the Board, be granted a leave of absence for one academic year for the purpose of professional improvement through study and research. Such study shall be directly connected with his or her work in the school system. The employee's application for a sabbatical shall outline in detail the proposed professional study plan for administrative review.
- 2. During the sabbatical year the recipient shall receive in lieu of salary a sum equal to two-thirds of the salary to which the teacher would otherwise be entitled if not on leave, less such regular deductions for Government income tax, Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund and other deductions as required by law or that are customary in the District. Said sum shall be paid in installments in accordance with the general time schedule for payment of salaries to employees in the regular employ of the school system.
- 3. Preliminary application for sabbatical leave shall be made prior to December 15 of the academic year previous to the year for which the leave of absence is desired. The purpose, date of this application and length of service will be factors in determining the number of grants within the budgetary limits for that year. The final application must be submitted by February 15. Due consideration shall be given to the reasonable and equitable distribution of the applications among the different schools and departments. The Board of Education shall give notice of the approval for sabbatical leave, or rejection, together with an explanation thereof, no later than April 1 of the year previous to the academic year for which the leave is requested.
- 4. As a condition of sabbatical leave, the employee shall agree that if he does not continue in service for two years after expiration of leave of absence he shall be required to repay to the Board a sum of money bearing the same ratio to the amount of salary received while on leave of absence that the unperformed part of the subsequent two years of service bears to the full two years, unless such employee is incapacitated, has been discharged without cause, or has been released by the Board from this obligation.

- 5. During any sabbatical leave, the employee shall not engage in any employment for remuneration without approval of the Superintendent and shall devote the major portion of his or her time and effort toward the purpose of the grant.
- 6. No more than two(2) teachers shall be granted sabbatical leave during any given academic year. These shall not be from the same school.
- 7. An employee on sabbatical leave shall notify the Superintendent in writing on or before March 1 of that year of his or her intention to return to duty. Failure to give such notification on the part of the employee on leave will be interpreted as an indication that such employee does not wish to return to the employ of the Board. Every employee on sabbatical leave shall present a written report to the Superintendent covering the studies engaged in while on sabbatical leave and the benefits anticipated therefrom. Such report is due prior to August 1 but in no event later than two months after the completion of the sabbatical program.
- 8. Upon satisfactory completion of the sabbatical leave, the employee will be returned to service at a salary on the same basis as if he had rendered continued and satisfactory service in the school system during the interim.
- 9. If the Superintendent has reason to believe that an employee on sabbatical leave is not fulfilling the purpose for which the leave of absence was granted, he shall report this fact to the Board. The Board may eliminate the leave of absence for non-fulfillment of purpose after giving the employee involved the opportunity of a hearing.
- 10. If a teacher on sabbatical leave shall ascertain that she is pregnant, she shall immediately report this fact to the Superintendent. He shall, after considering her doctor's report, recommend to the Board whether or not the leave shall continue, dependent upon the probability of the successful completion of the sabbatical program. Transfer to maternity leave shall be governed by the maternity leave policy.
- 11. An employee shall be eligible for another sabbatical leave after he has had seven additional continuous school years of service in the Springfield district. Extended illness or maternity leave shall not be deemed an interruption of continuity of service. This time limit may be waived at the discretion of the Board.

# TEACHER-ADMINISTRATION-BOARD COMMITTEE

The major concern of any school district is to promote the educational welfare of all of its students. In accordance with this purpose the committee shall function to:

- 1. Discuss openly and informally any educational issue pertinent to the Springfield School System.
- 2. Foster a spirit of professional growth and develop a concept of mutual cooperation and understanding.

Members of this committee shall be individuals who represent the Board of Education, the Administration, and the Teachers.

The Board shall be represented by three members appointed by the Board. The Administration shall be represented by the Superintendent and a principal as selected by the Principals' group. The Teachers shall be represented by a representative from each school and special services as selected by the President of the Springfield Teachers Association.

# Responsibilities of the Superintendent

- 1. To convene meetings of the TAB Committee at the request of:
  - a. The Teachers' representatives
  - b. The Board representatives
  - c. The Principals' representatives
  - d. The discretion of the Superintendent: with a suggested number of three meetings per year.
- 2. To act as chairman at all meetings of the TAB Committee
- 3. To prepare an agenda for each meeting in relation to the stated purpose of the Committee.
- 4. To facilitate the preparation of said agenda all items should be directed to the Superintendent, and in all cases no later than 10 days prior to any scheduled TAB meeting.
- 5. To notify each member of the TAB Committee in writing at least 5 days prior to the date of the meeting.
- 6. A member of TAB Committee will keep minutes of the meeting and send copies to the Board President, the Superintendent, the President of Springfield Teachers Association, and all TAB members.

# Responsibilities of the Committee Members

- 1. To gather facts to provide for a complete understanding of each item to be discussed.
- 2. To discuss all tenable solutions to the items presented.
- 3. To reach a consensus among all Committee members.
- 4. With agreement of at least 7 members, an advisor may be invited to attend a meeting of this committee.
- 5. To report findings and recommendations to their respective groups.

#### ABSENTEE POLICY

All reference to days shall mean teaching or working days.

A day's salary for teachers shall be defined as 1/200 of the annual salary, and in no instance where a deduction is made from a salary shall the deduction be greater than the regular wage of the individual for the day involved.

The provisions of each section of this policy operate independently of all other sections.

## 1. Personal Illness

Sick leave with full pay during any school year shall be granted employees of the Board as follows:

- a. Employees with up to 3 uninterrupted years of service 10 days
  Employees with more than 3 uninterrupted years of service 20 days
- b. Each year any unused portion of the first ten days leave shall be cumulative without limit.
- c. Absences on sick leave shall be charged first to the annual allowance of any employee until it is fully utilized and thereafter to the accumulated credit.
- d. Absences on sick leave in excess of that provided under a and b shall be allowed, subject to deduction of salary paid a substitute filling the position, up to 20 days' time for each completed year of service by the employee on sick leave, and limited to 10 months in any current 10 year period for those persons who are suffering from an extended illness and are under the continuous care and treatment of an attending physician.
- e. Absence for illness in excess of 5 consecutive days must be certified by the attending physician. In the case of frequent or intermittent illness the Board or Superintendent will require the employee to submit a certificate of illness from the attending physician, or submit to an examination or examinations by the school physician.

#### 2. Illness in the Family

For absence due to serious illness of any relative living in the employee's immediate household or a mother or father, full pay for not more than 5 days in each school year shall be paid the employee. Days needed for this purpose will be deducted from the accumulated sick leave allowance which is in excess of that which is stipulated as mandatory by New Jersey State law. Such absence shall be approved by the Superintendent. If there is no such accumulation of sick leave, such pay shall be subject to the deduction of salary paid a substitute.

# 3. Death

- a. Absences because of death in the employee's immediate household or the employee's spouse, children, parents, grandparents, brothers, and sisters, including father-in-law and mother-in-law, shall be allowed with full pay for a period not exceeding five days in each such case. (Not deductible from sick leave.)
- b. Absences due to death of any other family member will be permitted with full pay for the day of the funeral. (Not deductible from sick leave.)

# 4. Professional Business

- a. Two days' leave of absence with pay may be granted for school business, if application is made in writing and approved by the Principal and Superintendent. (Not deductible from sick leave.)
- b. Application for more extended leave for school purposes shall be made in writing and shall require Board approval. (Not deductible from sick leave.)

# 5. Personal Business

An employee will be granted, if needed, two personal business days per year, which shall be with full pay, to accomplish legitimate business requirements that cannot be attended to on other than the normal work day. His principal shall be notified three days in advance in writing without reason stated, unless an unforeseen emergency arises. When used for emergency purposes the reason shall be submitted. A personal business day shall not be granted for a day preceding or the day following holidays or vacations, and the first and last day of the school year, except by special approval from the Superintendent.

# 6. Maternity Leave

- a. An employee of the Board of Education shall notify her principal or other superior of her intent to take a maternity leave of absence no later than 60 days prior to the date on which she intends to leave. Such notification will be accompanied by a written statement from the doctor indicating the expected birth date of the child. The leave of absence shall begin on the date stipulated by the employee, subject to her continued ability to perform all professional responsibilities as determined by her principal or other superior.
- b. At the time a tenured employee applies for said leave, she shall also submit the date on which she will return to employment. Her date of return may be as soon as she feels competent to fulfill her professional responsibilities, or shall extend for one year following the birth of the child and as much longer as may be required to terminate on the next succeeding September 1. The Board of Education will grant such leave of absence without pay. In the event that normal condition attendant upon pregnancy and birth does not prevail, the employee may apply to the said Board for permission to return to her position prior to the termination of the period for which leave was granted, and such application will be granted provided the Board has not filled the position with an employee under contract.

- c. A non-tenured employee may apply to the Board for permission to return to complete her contract period either by applying at the time of notification of pregnancy, or thereafter, in the event that normal condition attendant upon pregnancy and birth does not prevail. Such application will be granted for the balance of her existing contract provided the Board has not filled the position with an employee under contract.
- d. At the time a non-tenured employee applies for said leave, she shall also indicate the duration of her leave. She may return to her duties at that time. The leave may not extend beyond the end of her contract period.

# 7. Child Adoption

Any teacher adopting a child shall be eligible to receive leave similar to maternity leave. Any teacher planning adoption should notify the Superintendent upon submitting legal application for adoption.

# 8. Judicial Proceedings

Absences from school by reason of a subpoena by any court shall be allowed with full pay, providing a copy of the subpoena is shown to the Super-intendent. If an employee is a party to a suit and is required to appear in court, absence from school shall be with pay less deductions for substitutes. (Not deductible from sick leave.)

# 9. Quarantine in Contagious Disease

When such quarantine is not because of personal illness, the employee shall be allowed full pay, providing the certificate is filed with the Superintendent. (Not deductible from sick leave.)

When the quarantine is because of personal illness Section I shall apply.

10. On the recommendation of the Superintendent, absence in excess of that referred to in Section 1 through 9 may be reviewed by the Board for special consideration, but there shall be no deviation from these rules except by vote of the Board of Education.

#### PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Teachers shall check in at least 15 minutes before school begins and remain at least 30 minutes following the dismissal of classes before checking out. It is understood that part of the teachers' professional responsibilities include assisting students in counseling, extra help, and make up, in addition to fulfilling their other professional responsibilities.

Exceptions for the time of departure are Fridays (except when a parent conference has been arranged), days preceding holidays, afternoons of P.T.A. meetings, or when permission has been obtained from the principal.

- 2. a. Teachers in the middle school shall have at least one professional period per day, and where scheduling permits, shall have one team planning period per week.
  - b. In the elementary schools, when pupils are scheduled for art, music, and physical education classes, the classroom teacher may use the special period for planning. The principal may request the teacher to be present under extraordinary circumstances. This provision is contingent upon the availability of substitutes for special teachers, and every effort will be made to assign such substitutes.
- 3. Anticipating the professional cooperation of the staff in effecting this provision, regular teachers shall not be used as substitutes, thereby depriving them of their professional periods, except in the case of an emergency.

#### NON-TEACHING DUTIES

- 1. The Board acknowledges that a teacher's primary responsibility is to teach, and that his energies should, to the extent possible, be utilized to this end. Teacher aides will be hired as prescribed by the building principal and authorized by the Board to perform non-teaching duties.
- 2. The Springfield Board of Education will hire aides for lunchroom duty in the schools. These aides will be under the direct supervision of the principal of each school.
- 3. In the elementary schools, the principals will seek volunteers to assume lunch duty. In the event that there is an insufficient number of volunteers, the principal may schedule all staff members for lunch duty on a rotating basis, providing no teacher is deprived of a lunch period. Teachers who are scheduled for lunch duty shall accrue compensatory time equal to the time on duty. Teachers may leave one-half (1/2) hour early on days mutually agreed to by the teacher and building principal, to be taken as soon as practicable thereafter.
- 4. In the middle school, the principal may schedule teachers for lunchroom and playground supervision with their consent, providing the teachers are not deprived of a regular professional and lunch period.
- 5. Before-school coverage of the playground shall be shared equally by all teachers, except librarians, in their respective buildings.

# TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS

- A. All presently employed teachers shall be given written notice of their class, subject, building and room for the forthcoming year no later than June 1st. However, it is recognized that circumstances may occur after June 1 which may require a change in above assignment or make it impractical to have the meeting referred to in Paragraph B. below.
- B. An involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be made only after a meeting between the teacher involved and the principal at which time the teacher shall be notified of the reason therefore. In the event that a teacher objects to the transfer or reassignment at this meeting, upon the request of the teacher, the Superintendent shall meet with him. The teacher may, at his or her option, have an Association representative present at such meeting.
- C. Involuntary transfers or reassignment shall not be made arbitrarily, capriciously or for punitive reasons.

# PROMOTIONS

When the Superintendent is aware that a vacancy will exist in a permanent promotional position which the Board decides to fill, the Superintendent shall post a notice that the vacancy exists. A teacher in the school district may apply for the vacant position. It is recognized, however, that appointment to the vacancy will be made at the discretion of the Board, and that the Board is not limited to make appointments from within the district.

#### FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE

#### Notification of Status

#### 1. Date

On or before April 30th of each year, the Board or its designee shall give to each nontenure teaching staff member continuously employed by it since the preceding September 30th either:

- a. A written offer of a contract for employment for the next succeeding year providing for at least the same terms and conditions of employment but with such increases in salary and benefits as may be required by law or agreement between the Board and the Association, or
- b. A written notice that such employment shall not be offered.

## 2. Reasons

Any nontenure teacher who receives a notice that such employment will not be offered may within five (5) days thereafter, in writing, request a statement of reasons for such non-employment from the Superintendent, which statement shall be given to the teacher in writing within five (5) days after receipt of such request.

#### 3. Informal Conference

Any nontenure teacher who has received such notice and statement of reasons may petition the Board for an informal conference provided a written request for such conference is received in the office of the Secretary of the Board within five (5) days after receipt by the teacher of the statement of reasons. The petition shall set forth the reasons why the petition should be granted. The Board, in its discretion, may grant or refuse the petition.

#### 4. Board Determination

In the event the informal conference is granted, the Board shall issue its written determination as to the employment or nonemployment of said nontenure teacher for the next succeeding school year within five (5) days after the completion of the hearing.

## 5. Failure to Comply

Should the Board fail to give a nontenure teaching staff member either an offer of contract for employment for the next succeeding year or a notice that such employment shall not be offered within the time and in the manner provided by this Article, the Board shall be deemed to have offered to that teacher continued employment for the next succeeding school year upon the terms and conditions of employment as may be required by law or agreement between the Board and the Association.

# 6. Notification of Intention to Return

If the teacher desires to accept such employment, he shall notify the Board of such acceptance, in writing, on or before June 1, in which event such employment shall continue as provided for herein. In default of such notice the Board shall not be required to continue the employment of the teacher.

# 7. Board Discretion

The Board retains full discretionary authority to decide whether any particular teacher should or should not be reengaged. Its determination need not be grounded on unsatisfactory classroom or professional performance.

# 8. Procedure

A nontenure teacher shall not be entitled to a formal hearing, nor shall the matter be subject to the grievance or arbitration provisions of this agreement.

# TEACHER EVALUATION

The Board agrees to continue its current Teacher Appraisal and Supervision System during the term of this contract, and will continue to provide a copy of related materials to each teacher at the beginning of each school year.

#### PERSONNEL AND PERSONNEL RECORDS

## 1. File

A teacher shall have the right upon written request, to review the contents of his or her personnel file during normal office hours. The teacher may make copies at his or her expense of any documents contained therein. A teacher shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him or her during such review.

# 2. Derogatory Material

No material derogatory to a teacher's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in his or her personnel file unless the teacher has had an opportunity to review the material. The teacher shall acknowledge that he or she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his or her signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The teacher shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his or her answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent or his designee and attached to the file copy.

The Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of personal references, academic credentials, pre-employment data and other similar documents. The foregoing shall not be available for the teacher's inspection.

#### Termination of Employment

Final evaluation of a teacher upon termination of his or her employment shall be concluded prior to severance.

#### Reduction in Force

If a reduction in personnel is being considered which will result in the lay off of a teacher, the Board or its designee shall notify the teacher affected as soon as practical before the layoff is to take place, but in no event later than April 30 of that year. The Board shall retain the prerogative to determine reduction in force.

# TEACHERS' SALARY GUIDE

	1975-76			1976-77			
Exp.	Bachelor's  Degree	Master's Degree	6 Year	Bachelor's Degree	Master's Degree	6 Year	
0	\$9950	\$10950	\$11500	\$10300	\$11300	\$11850	
1	10308	11393	11989	10796	11881	12478	
2	10796	11794	12532	11184	12361	13008	
3	11186	12185	13042	11713	12796	13597	
14	11566	12564	1 <u>3432</u>	12137	13220	14150	
5	11978	12987	13834	12549	13632	14574	
6	12391	13400	14257	12997	14091	15010	
7	12803	13801	14669	13444	14539	15469	
8	13215	14214	15082	13891	14974	15916	
9	13617	14626	15494	14339	15422	16363	
10	14105	15092	15960	14774	15869	16811	
11	14566	15570	16438	15304	16375	17317	
12	15038	16036	16872	15804	16893	17835	
13	15516	16514	17382	16316	17399	18306	
14	15977	16980	17848	16834	17917	18859	
15	16568	17577	18445	17335	18424	19365	
16	17154	18152	19020	17976	19071	20013	
17	17945	18749	19606	19201	19695	20637	
18		19671	20501_		21047	21936	

#### AFTER-SCHOOL ATHLETIC ACTIVITIES

The existence and scope of the after-school athletic activities shall be as determined by the Board of Education on recommendation of administration.

During a school year, if there is to be a program of after-school athletic activities, each physical education teacher in the program in the middle school shall be paid for a program having a minimum of 128 hours for boys and 64 hours for girls, the program to be conducted commencing at 3:00 P.M. The rate of pay per hour shall be \$6.21 in 1975-76; \$6.71 in 1976-77.

During a school year, if there is to be a program of after-school athletic activities, each physical education teacher in the program in the elementary schools shall be paid for a program having a minimum of 48 hours, the program to be conducted commencing at 3:00 P.M. The rate of pay shall be \$270.00 in 1975-76; \$291.60 in 1976-77.

Physical education teachers will submit hours worked on these activities to the Superintendent of Schools by the fifth (5th) day of each month and shall be paid at the next regular pay-period.

# OVERNIGHT FIELD TRIPS

Teachers participating in overnight field trips shall be compensated at the rate of \$30.24 per night in 1975-76; in 1976-77 the rate shall be \$32.66 per night. The directors or coordinators (maximum - 2) shall be compensated at the rate of \$35.64 per night in 1975-76; in 1976-77 the rate shall be \$38.49 per night.

## INSURANCE

All persons represented by the Springfield Teachers Association will be provided the same coverage under the New Jersey State Public and School Employees Health Benefits Program as is now in existence.

## SUMMER SCHOOL

The existence and scope of the summer school program shall be as prescribed by the Board. Salaries for summer school personnel shall be as follows:

Summer 1975 and 1976 - \$976.50 for a five-week program

\$1247.75 for the Director

# NON-CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

Specialists-in-residence hired on a part-time basis for the entire school year shall be limited to three (3). Other specialists may be hired to provide services to the system and each of these will be limited to an individual residence period of thirty (30) hours.

#### ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

- 1. Whenever a representative of the Association or any teacher is mutually scheduled by the parties to participate during working hours in grievance proceedings, conferences, or meetings, he shall suffer no loss in pay.
- 2. Representatives of the S.T.A. shall be permitted to transact official Association business and/or conduct meetings on school property, provided, however, that the approval of the building principal is obtained in advance as to time and, further, provided that no such transactions, official business and/or meetings shall be permitted to interfere with or interrupt normal school operations or teaching responsibilities.
- 3. The Springfield Teachers Association shall have the privilege of using school facilities and equipment including typewriters, mimeograph machines, other duplicating equipment, calculating machines and audiovisual equipment at reasonable times, when such equipment and/or facilities are not otherwise in use. This privilege shall be subject to the prior approval of the principal of the school in which the facilities and/or equipment is to be used. The Association shall provide all materials and supplies incident to such use. No piece of equipment as referred to above is to be removed from any school building. The Association shall be responsible for any damage resulting from the use of any equipment by the Association or its representatives.
- 4. The Association shall have the privilege of posting appropriate notices of its meetings, social affairs or Association business. Copies of all materials to be posted shall be furnished to the building principal in advance of posting. The Association shall have the right to distribute, through the use of the teachers' mail boxes, material dealing with the proper and legitimate business of the Association.
- 5. The Association shall be responsible for acquainting its members with all provisions of this Agreement and shall be responsible for adherence to the provisions of this Agreement by its members during the life of this Agreement.

## SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

The Board and the Association agree to commence collective negotiations in accordance with Public Employment Relations Commission rules and regulations. Both parties agree to meet at reasonable times and to negotiate in good faith.

1. The Board and the Association agree that their respective representatives shall be given full authority to negotiate, but any agreement reached shall be subject to ratification by the respective bodies.

# DURATION

This agreement shall be effective September 1, 1975 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 1977 when it shall expire unless an extension is agreed to by both parties and expressed in writing prior to that date.

## EXECUTION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto caused these presents to be signed by their proper corporate officers the day and year first above-mentioned.

ATTEST:

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SPRINGFIELD, COUNTY OF UNION

CHAIRMAN OF THE NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE

ATTEST:

SPRINGFIELD TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

(Indrea M. Hallace By: William & Horsident

CHATEMAN OF THE MECONTANTON

COMMITTEE